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Final Order in the matter of M/s Aegon Life Insurance Company Ltd., now known as 
Bandhan Life Insurance Ltd., 

1. Pmfff~a $ 3fTW 1R / Based on the: 

1.1 10 ~ 14 m, 2020 C1CP ~~ fBf-illlJ..{cf> dfRmffi~ ("~') &RT 

fiil1faa frrtt/lJUT ~ ~'tf * cpRUT ~on ~ ("Qfi~Q .. i") ~if ~
~~~mcFT/2020/544/Qfi~Q.-J ~ 22 $N.f1 , 20241 

Show Cause Notice ("SCN") reference No. IRDA/Enforcement/2020/544/SCN 

dated 22nd February, 2024 in connection with the inspection conducted by the 
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of Ind ia ("the Authority") from 10th 

to 14th August, 2020. 

1.2 Jq1cki Qfi~Q.-J ~ ~ ~ ~£.G, ~ ~~l!l~fi ~ -~~*fl Gll~q icil ~ 'QlTR 
~~~~fl~~-~~~ 15 J:TTTf, 20241 

Response of M/s Aegon LifeJnsurance Company Ltd_, now known as Bandhan Life 
Insurance Ltd., ("the "Insurer") dated 15th March, 2024 to the aforesaid SCN . 

1.3 ~~zj" LIOTcf>lfacf> ~- 53fi~. ajt_ qc.-Jlllcf> ~-~ 3fR 53fi~~ 

~~-fcra-q~~~~31 ~, 2024cITT~11:00~3-ll~l~ci tj[jfc@cf> 

-{i.-Jql{ ~ cTTxFl csflAlcf>ciT ~ fcpir rm \..l«_!cilcf>-!01 otfl tj[jfc@cf> -{i.-Jql{ ~ ~ ~ 03 

uf,, 2024 ~ ~ ~ IDx1 fcnQ rm 31R)~cki U«_!cilcf>x □ I I 
The submissions made by the Insurer during the personal hearing held on 31st May, 
2024 at 11 :00 AM, by the panel of two Whole T ime Members of the Authority - Shri 
B. C. Patnaik (Member-Life) and Shri Rajay Kumar Sinha (Member F&I) and further 
submissions made post personal hearing vide letter dated 03rd June, 2024. 

2. -qlf~ / Background: 

~} 

2. 1 _ ~ q 1 o ~ 14 m, 20 20 (lcp ~ J.-1 I cfj a f ct>T ~ar□ 1 fi il I fd a ~ irr 1 '3cm f.'rti11JUT 

cpl wni ~I~~~ mir-mir, ~ ~/ 1938, ~ 3-l"'UR ~ fcpir rm 
ruR*w dfR ru~11Rcf~n· tjJ Jeti~.:i ~~, 

im-#WT{R ~ ~ $1Ff/" ta ~lW/fT it .3/FrlTr JfTt.w 
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The Authority had conducted an inspection of the insurer from 10th to 14th August, 
2020. The inspection report, inter alia, revealed certain violations of provisions of 
the Insurance Act, 1938, Regulations and Guidelines issued thereunder. 

2.2. f.rtt~ ftcTTi cp't ~ "ITTd istlJ..Jlcf>ciT cp) ~ ~ cp1 ~fifl ~ ~ ~ cp't ~ ~ 
'3fR '3"c@ ~ 16 ~. 2020 cm IDL<l cp't ~ ~ 1 ist1J..J1cf>af mr ~ rm q«icilct>{ □ff cpl 
\iffu cf5"R "Qx 22 l{)xcl:il, 2024 cITT cpRUT ~'3IT ~ (~fHfiLFi) \JJRt ~ TflTT ?.ff I 

istlJ..Jlct>cif-q '3"c@ ~fi~~-i $ ~ ~ Fa.::iict> 15 "J..JTif, 2024 $~$&RT ~ I istlJ..Jlcf>ciT 

&RT fcp-q TTQ ~~ iB" ~ ~ ~ 31 ~. 2024 cm a£1fc@cfj '{l,.:icl1{ cpl '3fqW 

~~Tfml 
A copy of the inspection report was forwarded to the insurer seeking their response 
and the response was received on 16th November, 2020. On examining the 
submissions made by the insurer, a show cause notice (SCN) was issued on 22nd 

February, 2024. The Insurer replied to the SCN vide letter dated 15th March, 2024. 
As requested for by the insurer, personal hearing was granted t9 them on 31 st May, 
2024. 

2.3. ist1J..J1cf>af cp't '3?R~ ~~~~, ~~ Pia~1cf> q~ cf>14ct>1-t1 ~, ~~-qing, 

~ 011q1a.:i ~-a-irnnft:rcITTulcp1 '3?R~ ~~- ~- qc.:illlcf5, ~~ '3flx ~ 
~ W1W ~ ~ fcttr cf~, ~ JfR iB" ~ ~ J..J$1Qcif'cfcp), ~it~~ 
~ (J..J$1Qciftfcp), ~ ~ ~-cPif (J..J$1Qcif£[<:f)) '3fR ~ Rt9cf!Tif <ft ~tfcp) '3"c@ ~-icll~ 

~~~~I 
On behalf of the insurer, Shri Satishwar B, Managing Director & Chief Executive 
Officer; Shri Jitin Parekh, Chief Compliance Officer and on behalf of the Authority, 
Shri BC Patnaik (Member Life) and Shri Rajay Kumar Sinha (Member F&I), Shri R 
K Sharma (Chief General Manager), Shri T Venkateswara Rao (General Manager), 
Shri Sanjay Kumar Verma (General Manager) and Shri Viswanath V (Manager) 
attended the hearing. 

2 .4. isl) J..J I cf> af &RT '3fTR ~ Fa .:i i cf> 3 uff, 2 02 4 $ ~ ~ fcp-q TTQ ~ ml a q «icil cf> x off '3flx 31 

~. 2024 cf>1 aqfc@cfj '{j,-icll{ $ ~ fcp-q TTQ Q«!cilcf>xUff "Qx ~ ~ 
"fffq'q 1..n crJcp fctcrR ~ Tf[TT ~ -a-zn ~ ~ ~ ~ \Jf@l ~: 

The written submissions made by the insurer vide its letter dated 3rd June, 2024 
and submissions during the personal hearing on 31 st May, 2024 have been carefully 
considered by the Authority and are summarized below: 

3. 3fITTQ' ~- 1: ~arur RC1.1fu1iti ~- 1 3fR 2 
Charge No. 1: Inspection observations No.1 & 2 

3.1. frffiedUI Rlll □n ff. 1 / Inspection Observation No.1: 

~ rrrff.r ~ $·~mh1 ciirr-fJ f?t!R2.s it lffJ:Tit if .Jifc:rlr ~ 
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(!tp1(!e1 ~ zmq31 farficp 28 !f!dirt?, 201s ~ &6" 3.4 cfiT JfrlE/--11 

-I 
I · ■ ·,MPWtxtl 

ir.:lai 

Violation of clause 3. 4 of AML Master Circular dated 28th September, 2015. 

qrsf 2017-18 Jilx 2018-19 ~ ~ ~J-J1q5af ~ J1ia~q5 ffisIT-"Clitw ~t.flTf "ITTxT £Fr-m£fl 

Plcl1-<01 (QQJ-JQ<.1) ~ ~ 01ia~q5 ~-Llitw ~cpl~~ 1 qrsf 2017-18 Jilx 2018-19 

~ ~ QQl-lQ<.1 cp) 01-scf5-< ~ ~ ~ ~ J1ia~q5 ffifil-WW cpl~ ~ 1 ~ 
• ~~ ~-n-r- -

'3@TcTT, ~l-11¢af ~ "ITTxT ~ cp1 ~ J1ia~q5 ~ -ww w:nt far1i¢ 13 ~. 2020 

1Rm~~~-rm ~ 1 ~~, tfQ~ifcp '3Jia~cfj ~-wan Jf~f.:rttarur 

~t.flTf ~ Pl~ftla JfT~ 1R £Fr-m£fl Plcll-<DI ~ ~ .nffilll \.lUP~ldff J?R PJtj51off ~ 
Jijql<.1-i cpl ~klllq-i ~ ~I dlici~cfj ~-W~ cpl~~- QQl-lQ<.1 "cf)l ~c{llq-i 

~ ~ TflfT -a-m £Fr-m£fl Pl cl I-< 01 cp1 ~ ~£.rt Ji i a ~cf5 41 ffi l!'i Jilx \.l RP~ 1 Jff cp1 
f),t~a1 "CR~~~ fecqofl qft~1 
Internal audit towards Anti Money Laundering (AML) was not done or reviewed by 
the internal audit department of the insurer for the year 2017-18 and 2018-19. 
Internal audit relating to different subject was done except AML during the year 
2017-18 and 2018-19. Further, it was also observed that the internal audit report as 
submitted by the insurer vide mail dated 13th August, 2020, was unsigned. Thus, it 
is evident that Internal Audit or Inspection department did not verify compliance with 
policies, procedures and controls relating to money laundering activities on a 
regular basis. The reports ofJnternal Auditors did not verify AML and comment 
specifically on the robustness of the internal policies and processes on money 
laundering activities. 

3.2. f.:litarrr1 fecqofl ~- 2 / Inspection Observation No.2: 

(!lPllfc:1 ~ qfrq;f fa.-Jjcp 28 fad&!?, 2015 ~ &6" #31. 13. (i)(?g) a2/T zmq31 "ff. 
3fl(~Jfi{tJ.-Jtf8LfJ1ef/3flf .J{R"f.i)(!r-1l.!8115110912018 farficp 19 !f!dirt?, 2018 ~ 
&6" 4(?9) cfiT i3frlt1--11 
Violation of Clause No.3.1. 13. (i)(b) of AML master circular dated 28th September, 
2015 and clause 4(b) of Circular No. IRDAIINSP/CIRIONS/157/09/2018 dated 19th 

September, 2018. 

58 ~ l-lll-1<11· ~tfQ"QT[TTTflflfcp~ 0llfiiHI ~ -~ ~~-011{Qr1dl) cf5T 
~ ~ ~ ~JfR) ~ ar1a~,· ~ ~ 'B ~mft=r ~ ~ ar1a~,- cpl 

cTTfuf ~ 7 cITT<t-~ ~ ~ ~ ~ cp1 ~ ~I ~ ~ ~ 'B qtiiJI~ -rm Jf~ 

ftc:rrt cpR mn:T ~ ~ 'B q ti il I~ rTQ" JfircTT l=fR -rm ci-i a~- "cf)l '3i j81 ~ -i ~ l-11 cf5 af ~ ~am 

~&lxf ~~ ~ (~·_gc{)) crRlR ~ 'lffl 26 ;,lffl l-lll-ltll°~~ 

~am~ "cf)l 0i:!A'1~r1 ~~1f~<:l18 ~-@18'5fl m~ ~l-11¢af ~~~~-rm~ 1 

"IR!"8 "([7lR ffWCP {!(qne ~ !Mtt2.s it lTf"RN # J/frm ~ 
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• 
JI 
cr:■a;x:a 

ir.:lai 

From a sample of 58 cases, it was observed that Suspicious Transaction Reports 
(STR) to Financial Intelligence Unit- India (FIU-IND) were not filed within 7 working 
days from the date of transactions being identified as suspicious transactions. The 
transactions identified or satisfied to be reportable as suspicious, were required 
mandatorily to be approved by the competent authority of the insurer. The 
documentary evidences showing the date of approval of the competent authority 
were not submitted by the insurer for 26 number of sample cases. ' 

4. csflBl<t>c1f ~ ~tnJl<t>~uj')" <f>T ~l~i~I / Summary of Insurer's submissions: 

4.1 csftJ.-Jl¢cif :t !.l«!d1¢x □ I f$1:rr i fcp- ~ifi Uffi>lll' lci "ITT9f--qil~ ifi ~ QQJ..JQci Uffi5l.11'3IT 

~-311q1a~,-~"Glfu"cpx~'<fl'1~~,~~cp1QLQfu1lWcf51'£rrR'il~ 

JfR '3fci1l QQJ..JQci ITT9f--qil~ °ITTtlf cfffl csftJ..Jlcf)cif q fchfm qr:f 2021 -22 ~ ~ ~iHfaa 

QQJ.-JQa ffi9T--qilarr cf5T 'QcP "!.l'fc, ~ cf5T i ~- QQJ..JQ<11tfiQq5~J=a~11f.-li1~ff ~ ~1q1a.:i 

cFff uu11ci1 cf5T ~mB ~~~~'[RT cp1 ~ cf)l~ql{ ~£ft~ Q9-1fo1lff "Qcpc 'ITTcfi ~I 

The insurer has submitted that all the process audits were also looking into the 
compliances of various AML processes. Further, they had noted the observations of 
the Authority and initiated separate AML audits. The insurer has shared a copy of 
the AML Audit carried out for the financial year 2021-22 which brings out certain 
observations on compliance of AML/CFT Guidelines and the action taken by the 
management to correct the system. 

4.2 ~afUT ~~I~ q ~ 8.:ia~,• ~ ~£ITTUT ~~~cpl~*~ 
~ ~ ~ cf51' ~ <Pl q J J.-J H u RP L11 cf51 ~arr cpl i 1 ~ ~ , ~ u «1cf1 cp x 01 

f$1:rr i fcp- 0c@ !.l ffi5 LI I cpl 'ficftR f$1:rr 1T<TT i ~ ~ ~ f.-l, Ix 141 'ffill cf5T IT{% I 
Post the inspection, the Company has reviewed the existing process of identification 
of suspicious transactions as well as reporting of the same to FIU in case required. 
Further, they have submitted that the process has been enhanced and strict 
monitoring is now in place. 

5. ~ I Decision 

5.1. ~ *if il QQJ..JQcittfiQ45e1 uu11dl cf)l-qilafUT ~ ~ ~ 'QcP 0flW <TT 01ia~¢) ~ 
~ --qitarr cpr:f ~ J..Jt?ctjcruf % I dlici~cfj "ITT9r-Warr * ~~ ~ ~ lWf ~ 
cpx~qlci ~'l-fq ¢14¢cil4'l' <Pl q$tjH ~ ~ ~ ~ "Gffq ~11fi1a cpl 'GfT ~ i I 
An (external or internal) independent audit function to test the AML/CFT system is of 
paramount importance in this context. Internal audit could include sample testing to 
identify possible activities leading to Money Laundering . 

~ rpff.r ~ $·1<mh1 cj,rr,:fJ fWi:J2s i/i l1T'lTfl' if .J/fc1lr .3fRJ(T, 
Final Order in the matter of Mis Aegon Life Insurance Co. Ltd., 
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-I 
i ·,#?i#tWttCJ 

ir.tai 

5.2. l!,lP--ll!,<1 $~ '31ici~qj ~-1:Rtw aj=q1~a 1~°gQ, isih-llct5cil~"l:JQ ~~R-<fa w~% 

fclJ"~WT~~-rrq l!,l!,J..JQ,<11~Q,Lp~ ra~11f.-la=~n·cITT dij41<1-i m$~~ 
~ ~ '3fR -u'l-ITclt ~RP~1Q ru~J..JH ~ 1 ~ '3ffficTT, a~fchlqj {!-icll~ $ ~ isi1J..J1q5af ~ 
WT ~ cf5T ~ "ffigT-1:Rtw ft4Ti ~ ~fiR W ~ -rrq t cf'lfl ~ '3f'4T '4T 
l!,l!,J..Jl!,<1/~l!,Q5~ fa~llf.-l~~n" qJ"f ~j41<1-i -i" ~ $ ~tf * ~ f2.cqfullll ~ t I 
By not carrying out internal audit towards AML, insurer has failed to demonstrate that 
it has robust and effective processes to comply with the AML/CFT Guidelines issued 
by the Authority. Further, the Audit report submitted by the insurer post personal 
hearing, is unsigned and still contains a few observations on non-compliance of 

AML/CFT Guidelines. 

5. 3. 1lQ <Sil J..J I¢ af cpl ~ I frl c-cl % TTP ~ $ ~ * ~tfftt, ~ -rrq fcp-m '4T ci -i ~-i c:p1 ~ 
~'3fR) ~ '3il~iHI ~ (Q"IP~ cITT ruf.-lm~ ~-mm$ '3ITT ~I cf'lffiCf, 

~JfRctfl Q51~Rill * 15-37 ~$~cpf~"Q"T[ff lflll%1 ' 

It is the responsibility of the insurer to report any transaction identified as suspicious 
(STR) to the Financial Intelligence Unit (FIU) within the specified timeline. However, 
delay varying from 15-37 days in filing of STR has been observed. 

5.4. a[jfc@qj {!·icll~ ~cam isi1J..Jlct5cil clTT~llu:"{!~lxl~qj ~~~ '3fR~~tf* 

~~ ~Bl8'51 ~ ~ $ ~ ~ fc$1:rr lf[ff I cf'lffiCf, <Sil J..J 1¢cil ~ ~ ~tf * ~ 
~□11~«i~ ru~J..Jl-i ITTcrm ruf.-lm~ ~$ dITT~ift~JfRctf) q51~Rii1 ~$~zf-i° 
il"~Bl8~ m~~WfclTTTT%1 

During the personal hearing, the insurer was advised to submit corrective measures 
taken and submit supporting documents in this regard. However, the insurer failed 
to submit documentary evidence in support of having required systems in place in 
this regard and filing of all STRs within the specified time. 

5.5. ~ m, isi1J..J1ct5af ~ Q,Q,J..JQ,ci ~ q~q:51 fa-ii¢ 2s ff!disix, 2015 $ ~= ~ 3.4 '3fR 
~~- 3.1.13. (i)(xg) cITT '3ct1'i:H fc$1:rr%1 

Thus, the insurer is in contravention of clause 3.4 and Clause No.3.1.13. (i)(b) of 
AML Master Circular dated 28th September, 2015 respectively. 

5.4 '344<k1 cITT~~. ciftl:rr ~. 1938 ctfl" URI 102ctft} ~ '3@lffi ~ ~1Fc@4'j 

q;-r VQ1lT cfRa ~. ~ ~ QRl (!(!Ji(! ci Ji I-R-l 4 ~ 4 51 ~ -1 i <f> 2 8 fft ci ~H, 201 5 

~ ~ 3.4 3fR (!(!Ji(!ci Jil-R-l 4~ 451 ~-1i<f> 28 fftcicH, 2015 ~ m 3.1.13, (i)~ 

~ uffi\:H ij;"~~-1 ~ ~~~ q)f 3f~ ~Plldl ~I 
In view of the above, in exercise of the powers vested under Section 102(b) of 
the Insurance Act, 1938, the Authority hereby imposes a penalty of Rs.1 crore 
(Rupee one crore) for the violation of clause 3.4 of AML Master Circular dated 

~ [[l7R ~ {emh1 c/irFfl l?tf1/2s it i::rp:fff if .Ji#m JfW-<T, 
Final Order in the matter of Mis Aegon Life Insurance Co. Ltd. , 
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-I 
e x ,;Mtwtxa 

ir.:lai 

28th September, 2015 and Clause No.3.1.13. (i)(b) of AML master circular dated 
28th September, 2015. 

5.5. ilfh-Hq;af <f)1 P!;U-j.fil~ cJ;l~ql{ ~ ~ ~ 1ft ~ ~ uJRTT ~ 
The insurer is further directed to 

• '3c@"ffi91-'Q"fl&rr ~ ~ TJ-q ~JIT cf)f ~UR"~~~ d<4>k1 ~ ~ 
'3fR ~ ~ untt ~ Tfq (!(!Jl(!ci,~(!Q,e1 m~11Pia~il q)f 3f&ITTT= ~ 
<fR"I 
Take immediate steps to address the issues pointed out in the audit and 
adhere to AML/CFT Guidelines issued by the Authority in letter and spirit. 

• (!(!Jl (!cl Q fs:t, ti I~ cf)f '3ftra trnFf ~ cf>'t ~ c:f>ra ~ ~~ 3ft '3fR ~3ft 
~ ~&ffta" '(!"cp' QJll014::t Q>l~ci cfR"I '3c@ QJllUftcp~Ul ~ ~ 'QRf ~ 
~ cf>'t di.fl-©~ 21 fa";f ~ ~ 4§-cl~II I , 

File a certificate signed by the MD&CEO and CCO confirming the due 
adherence of AML processes. The certification shall reach the Authority 
within 21 days from the date of this Order. 

s. ~ ~- 2: ~&fUT RD.loft~- 4 '1fR 5 
Charge No. 2: Inspection Observ4tion No. 4 and 5 

6.1. f;Rt~ f?ll-luft tf. 4 / Inspection observation No.4: 

JfT{ ~Jfl{ rq1f2tdlf/RcliT it ftal' w -m-~ fclf.tq4, 2011 ~ fclf.tqJ.f 11 r2J it ~ff 

W iJ cf'iElrf I 
Violation of the provision of Regulation 17(2) of the /ROAi (Protection of 
Policyholders' Interests) Regulations, 2017. 

ci11J--llcf5cif gRT ~ ~ r-<lcf51llci -BJ--llq'i -q;rr * ~fJl--1" ~-~ ~ ~ e1'1cf5qlci cpl ~cl{DI 

'3 q ci~ ~ ~ TTITT i 1 <1Q tfr[IT TTITT int isl, J--11 cf5af ~ ~fJl--1" ~ -~ ~ "-i"lll Jf'rx ~ 
cpl fclcl{DI ~~$:IT C1lcf5qlci ~ "Wiel J--IIJ--lcil ~ "GfR ~ fclcf5~ ~ ~ * r-<lcblllcicbcif cfJ1 
~ ~ f<t<:rr i I 
The complaint closure letters by the insurer did not provide the details of insurance 
ombudsman of competent jurisdiction. It was observed that the insurer did not inform 
the complainant of the option to take up the matter before insurance ombudsman 
giving details of the name and address of the Ombudsman of competent jurisdiction. 

6.2 . f;Rt~ f?ll-luft B. 5 / Inspection observation No.5: 

mm [[1ff.:r ffwP $-~w~-~ $v-fl f?tfll2s it llTRit if .Ji#m ~ 
Final Order in the matter of Mis Aegon Life Insurance Co. Ltd., 
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efmr cpqf.:Jq)' $' gm (l//cfj/2/d RctNV/ $' Im[ ~ $' fa:.?/IPl?~l ~if 'fl. 

31eftr!;'litJfR'c!/1m{cfJJJ110-11 la--ticf5 21.01.2010 $' ??16 4(f§)(ii) $ m-21 ~ @.:Jc11il 

Jnt ~ Jilt rl/1/?tdlffRcfil ~ l?a7' w m!ffUT) FcJRqq 2011 ~ fcJR21J..1 s qi{ iJ ct:-iEJ--11 

Violation of Regulation 5 of the !ROAi (Protection of Policyholders ' Interests) 
Regulations, 2017 to be read with Clause 4(g)(ii) of Authority's Guidelines for 
grievance redressal by insurance companies Ref No. 3/CAIGRVIYPB/10-11 dated 
27/07/2010. 

~h-llcf5cil ~ ~lcf51llc:11· * flJ.JIY--1 * ~ * ~ ~- ~lcf51llcicf5cil'3IT cpl~ ~fcrllTI ~ 
1WTT TTITT ftp° ~ J.J I cf5 af ~ ~I cf5 Ill a cf) af cpl ~ ~ fcrllT fcp ~ J-11 ip a ~/ q I~ ajl tfRq) 

&RT \TIR cf>'t ~ cp1 cfRR9 ~ 8 fl Lei I ti "$ ~ cfQ (~ J.J I cf5 cil) ~ "ITTLci" ~ cp«TT ill ~ 
f~rfc:p~= cfQ ~I cfj Ill a cpl fl J.J I ca AR1TT I 
The insurer did not inform the complainants about the manner of closure of 
complaints. It was observed that the insurer did not inform ttie complainant that it 
would regard the complaint as closed if it did not receive a reply within 8 weeks from 
the date of receipt of response by the insured/policyholder. 

7. cfh.:11q,af ~ tH-gdlcf>-lOn· <f>T -til-li~I / Summary of Insurer's submissions: 

7. 1 . ~ J..l I cf5 af ~ q I~ ajl ~ cm fcp-it Tl""Q W@ !.I cf5 27 cf5 {off~ ~ -;,lflT "Q;IT cm~ fcprrr % I 

The insurer has shared the sample letters as containing relevant disclosures to the 
policyholders. 

7 .2 '3<@ -q;r ~cpl~ ~ ~ clRcTT % ftp~~ \j{@ -q;r ~ 8 fl Lei I ti ~ ~ !.lcqiH l.lTLci' 

~ 'ITTci1 ill ~I cf5 Ill a "Y;f cm fl l--J I ca g '3fT ~ ~ I ~ '3i fa~ chl, mi &RT ~ ~ 
~lcf51llci f.-lql{UI -;:fifcl "$ 'l-fPl "$ ~ -q ~1¢1llci f.-lql{UI !.IUPlll ~ "l--Jll-@cm Jitjci{ m 1R 

~\JfR"$~ ~"$"QRfdYc.1~~~1R~~~~~~%c=r'lff~ 

cpl ~ fcprrr ~ % ftp° $1:J";fi "$ &RT ~ rm WTTtIR ~ ~ ~ ~ cf>'t ~ B ~ 
"QRT~ C11cf5Ylc.1 ~~cpRcp7 rucp~ %1 

The letter also informs the customer that in case they do not receive the response 
within 8 weeks from the letter the Complaint will be considered as closed. Further, 
as part of the Grievance Redressal Policy adopted by the Board, the grievance 
redressal procedure also highlights clearly the various levels of escalation available 
to the customer and informs the customer of the option to approach the Insurance 
Ombudsman in case not satisfied with the resolution provided by the Company. 

8. 3ITT1'Cf ~- 2 'Q'-l' ~ I Decision on Charge No. 2: 

#fref ffl ~ $·1<mh1 $v.fJ f?t!R2s it lfflTit # .J/fc7'r ~ 
Final Order in the matter of Mis Aegon Life Insurance Co. Ltd., 

g-g I Page 7 / 11 



~if: ~~~~&m1'3ft'3fITTttfa:fct~,, 021071202/ 
Ref: IRDAI/E&C/ORD/MISC/102/07/2024 
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~ qRf 1R WR~ lJl:rT i fcp- csflii lcf>df 4>" QRT ~ ~ ~ m:ITUR "Q;IT "It ct1cf> QI ct)' 

JfR~'ff&flf ~-abf q;i fctcHOI Pt~a ~ii d~jtil~, csfh:ncf>af q;1'~fam 

'GJ@l i fcp- '3tlq5<qq, tl~l~lc'-lcf> cf>l~ql{ cITT" JfR ~ ~ qrra ~ ~ '3fR ~'3rt am 
~ '3it QRT Q«TT&ffuf ~ u ii 101 Q::f cm~~ cITT" fcp ~ ~u 1l Rt Pi q iii" JfR q I Rt #I UR<f;T 

* m&fUT, q cfit H 3t-ja5<rl' ~ ~ Q 011 RI qf JfR Q fih q I '3IT cpl '3ftra tITTFf ~ 1PTT i I 

~ Qiiluflq,~01 ~ * 'Q'Rf ~ 3J$u ctft di.fl-©~ 21 ~ ~ ~ Q§il~II I 
It is noted that the sample resolution letters sent by the insurer do not contain the 
details of the Ombudsmen and their competent Jurisdiction. Accordingly, the 
insurer is directed to take necessary corrective action and file a certificate signed 
by MD&CEO and CCO confirming the due adherence of Regulations and 
Guidelines on Protection of Policyholders, systems and processes to the extant 
instructions in this regard. The certification shall reach the Authority within 21 
days from the date of this Order. 

9. 3ITTTQ' ~- 3: frr:fl'&fOT R lQ oft ~- 13 / Charge No. 3: Inspection observation No.13 

.JfT{ ~ {eftJ::rr W '(im&cp) fclf.:lq4, 2017 ~ &6' 1 O(ii) .J/t-{ 1 O(iii), ~ VI, fc/Rq4, 29 

iii" rfiTlf c!f c/iT 0Jrrif.l-t I 
Violation of Clause 10(ii) and 10(iii), Form T of Schedule VI, Regulation, 29 of /RDA 
(Insurance Web Aggregators) ReglJ)_ations, 2017. 

l-lH¢1cpa ~cpf 01:rs-1"'1~-i 0ijql<."H ~*IDxr~fcpifPTm%·crlIT~ ~ 
(~·-%c-ft) qq5~cf5-! □ 1 ~~%1 \j(@~*mir fa.:ii¢ ~%, ~~aR~~-rm 

%c,~~ is11l-Jlcf)cif * 0ijql<."H ~*illxl ~jl--j"'lfaa .:itf~Tfit%1 RwE" ~cfR 
1R ~ Jffixg ~cf5xill fct?" ~~~ cITT is11l-llcf5cif cf>l tj~til~c ~ Jqa~ ~ ~c:HOl 

(JRclcf) I (q I fqcRti) ~ * ~ ~ fcpm TfIIT % cl~~ ift ~ ~ fct?"m TfIIT % ftp-~ ift 
J q ciJf "ITT \jC@ ~<H 01 - 'JRcl cf) I ~ {-"Jta ~ 1R ~~I 
The Standardized Scripts are not approved by the Compliance Officer and they do not 
contain mandatory disclosure. The scripts were not dated, not signed and not approved 
by the Compliance Officer of the insurer. The script is not mandatorily mentioning that 
the prospect is advised to refer to the detailed prospectus available at the website of the 
insurer and that the prospectus shall be sent to his email id wherever available. 

10. ~Jilcf>df ~ UtgJlct>~on· 'cf>l til~i5<1 / Summary of Insurer's submissions: 

is11 J..11 cf) af q q «id1 cf)-! 01 fcl5<TT fct?" ~ ~ q OH * lTTm ~ di ct ti Ill "cpl ~afTcfR·-q * ~ ~ 
llR:r~ ~Qt;¢"'i*mir~~~%1 ~~ ~Qlt;cf5 ~ t.8cl.J5141R 011{Qt1Q--1Ql lfBIT 

*~ ~~ ti(illlcil $f ~~~ Ql(i¢1·cITT~"GlTd1%1 

im"ef <FlR ~ $0

R4/h1 $TF:fJ Rtfll2s iJi" "I/TIT& "R' .J/#Jlr ~ 
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~if: ~~~~&"Bl/~JfTW!Fcrfa:~/102/07 /202/ 
Ref: I RDAI/E&C/ORD/M ISC/102/07 /2024 

-I 
c:w i#twt:X-71 

ir.:lai 

The insurer submitted that they do not have any arrangements with web aggregators for 
soliciting the business through tele-marketing. The customers are called only in case of 
any assistance required during the ISNP journey on the web aggregator platform. 

11. '3f1m ti. 3 ~~I Decision on Charge No. 3: 

cfhil<f>df ~ clqfc@q, -{i-1ql{ $ cfRR qdlql ~ ~ ~QOH ~ mum '~ ~q~lq cf>'t 
'31'Q"&fl ~ $ ~ "ij"q -tt !I 6ct>l. $ m~ d-1 c6l q;)-{ ~ ~ i 1 ~ ~ 11 4hH <f> af $ 

~fect>101 ~ ~ ~Pt q ~ a ~ ~ ~frll I ~1 a "fITTfw-fi 3fR ~~ $ ~ q;1 3fm<f i crirr 

cfl'-tl<f>df <ITT~~ uf@T i fij;-~ ~u 1l qffJ-IH dtj<{!<n·,ra!<11Pla£<i'f $ '-IH<f>1q,a 

f& e,· 3fR ~ Q q,e)q, ~ on· $ ~ "QRR" cf>'t ~ ~ ~ cfl Ji l<f> af ~ ~Rftf '30" 
3fR~'3ITQRTfcffVcrc{~&ffta"~ QJ-IIUIQ~ Q>l~d cfR"I "de@ Q'-IIUflq,~UI ~ 
$"Qlff~~cf>'ta1~=&~21~$~Q§=c)m1 
The insurer, during the personal hearing stated that they do not have any 
arrangement with the web aggregators for soliciting the busir'less through tele
marketing. The insurer's approach in this matter lacked the level of diligence and 
care expected from a regulated entity and the insurer is directed to file a certificate 
duly signed by the MD/CEO and CCO of the insurer confirming the due adherence 
of the Standardized Scripts and related disclosures to the extant 
instructions/guidelines issued i~ this regard. The certification shall reach the 
Authority within 21 days from the date of this Order. 

12. Ptuf<i)" cf;l ~l~i!<I / Summary of Decisions: 

ti. ~U cf)J d <:ti 'i:H 

Charge No. Violation of Provision Decision 

1 (cP) QlUNci ~~ fa.:ijcp 28 ~dislx, 2015 ~m 3.4 cf)T Jcti't.H I ~ 
~~ 
~cp"f 

2 

(a) Violation of clause 3.4 of AML Master Circular dated 28th 

September, 2015. 

rm QQAQci ~ ~ ~ m ~- 3.1.13 (i) rm elm~~

~~~1J11~Q.:iv,flcfltm~'3fR1'3?1Q.:iQfl11 s71091201s 

fa--ii¢ 19 ~ciisl( 2018 ipm 4(xg) cpl Jcti't.H I 

(b) Violation of Clause No.3.1 .13. (i)(b) of AML master circular 
dated 28th September, 2015 and clause 4(b) of Circular No. 
IRDA/INSP/CIR/ONS/157/09/2018 dated 19th September, 
2018. 

(cP) ~ (Ql~~'c.fR<f)l ~ ~ cp1 Wa-ruT) ruPlllA, 2017 

~ ruPJllA 17(2) cpr J CTi~H I 

lRr"8 [[1TFT ~ $·f.!q)h1 ciiTFfl f?tf112s iii llTRir if .3/fcTlr JfR!<1; 
Final Order in the matter of Mis Aegon Life Insurance Co. Ltd., 
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One Crore 

~ 
Direction 

WI Page 9 / 11 



~'4: ~~~~&ajt/3ITJITm~'c.f/102/07 /202 
Ref: IRDAI/E&C/ORD/MISC/102/07 /2024 

(a) Violation of Regulation 17 (2) of the IRDAI (Protection of 
Policyholders' Interests) Regulations, 2017. 

(x9) ~ $q~li'j $ ID{[ r-<lct51llci ~tji-{01 $ ~ ~ $ 

ra~11~<1~, ~if tr. 3~{\Jft'3ITT<ft1q1{t11csn110-11 Fa--1ict5 

27.07.2010 $ ~ 4(£9)(ii) $ ~'lf ~ \Jll~tjlci ~~~ 
(Ylfaaj)'c.fITT51 $ Wcfl cpl 'ffiafUT) ~~lll-1, 2017 * ~~lll-1 5 <tr 
'3ct'i'i:H I 

(b) Violation of Regulation 5 of the IRDAI (Protection of 
Policyholders' Interests) Regulations, 2017 to be read with 
Clause 4(g)(ii) of Authority's guidelines for grievance 
redressal by insurance companies ref no. 
3/CA/GRV/YPB/10-11 dated 27/07/2010 

ir.:lai 

3 (cf)) '3fl{~'3fl{ ~~ fi~1$ct5) ~~lll-1, 2017*~ 10(ii) '3ITT ~ 
1 0(iii), ~VI* "Q5Tlf it, ~~lll-1 29 cpl '3ct'i'cH I ~ : Direction 

(a) Violation of Clause 10 (ii) and 1 0(iii), Form T of Schedule VI, 
Regulation 29 of IRDA(lnsurance Web Aggregator's) 
Regulations, 2017. 

13. ~~*~tr.1 i$"'3fcfffuWJmT[-qx>. 1 ~(Q!P~~*Jf~cp1xlf.TT 

isl1J..11ct5af $ID{r~~*~ll-;,rn -sl<.1ct5'{ Q--1{Q45c!11 Jil'{c!1'5fiQt1 ~llf£LP=r~ (~tlct51 

~tj-{01 Jf(1lT ~ ~ TTP1:n \JIIQ' II)~~$ f.:rm cp1 illOO ~ 45 ITT cp1 Jf<:fRr * '3ITT 

~Qf6iacf>l~I 
The penalty amount of Rs. 1 Crore (Rupees One Crore) levied under Charge No. 1 of 
this order shall be remitted by the insurer by debiting the Shareholders' Account within 
a period of 45 days from the date of issuance of this order through NEFT/RTGS (details 
of which shall be communicated separately). 

~WISIOI ¢1 ~ l3fi it. ~9cR ~I l-1$1\.lcii'c.f<p ({&~ cfTT 1-fffifl<:r ~ ~~llll-lct5 JfR ~ct51tl 

~I~ tr. 115/1, 451~~-r-<lllci ~~cfc, -iHct5'{1l-llJ-sl, ~~'{lisll~-500 032, t-lTI'f ~ 
enforcement@irdai .gov.in $ ~ ~ cft ~ I 
An intimation of remittance may be sent to Shri T Venkateswara Rao, General Manager 
(E&C) at the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India, Survey 
No.115/1, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad, 500032 email ID 
enforcement@irdai .gov.in 

14. ~ '3falcTT, ~ ~ IJ11R9l-l ~'c.f ~ ~ isl1J..llct5cif ~mi$~~ ifi JfTlwfi ~ B 
~ fcp-rn ~ 1 isllJ..11 q5af ~-~ * q51 lfq-a ctt "QcP ~ ~ cfRllT I isllJ..11 q5af ~ T[-q 

~ ~ cp1 llt ct5 I fo I { cf>I w:ni ~'3ITT) ~ cfTT ~ JfW-<T cf>I illOO ~ 45 ITT $ 

'3ITT~cfRTITI 

~ ffl ~ $0

Rzilh1 $TFf/ f?ffel2.s it lTfl1# if~ ,3fR;W, 
Final Order in the matter of Mis Aegon Life Insurance Co. Ltd., 
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w;if: ~~~~&mt'3?r'3fRmtfctta:~11021071202 
Ref: IRDAI/E&C/ORD/MISC/102/07 /2024 

-I 
1-,M·,MVWtxtJ 

ir.:lai 

Further, the Order shall be placed before upcoming meeting of Risk Management 
Committee and also the Board of the Insurer. The Insurer shall provide a copy of the 
minutes of the discussion. The Insurer shall submit an Action Taken Report to the 
Authority on direction given within 45 days from the date of this Order. 

1s. ~ · 4h--11cf>af ~ ~~~%,err~~, 193s cp1 mxr 110 ip~mip ~ 
~~ '31 cfl ct1 ll ~ (Q~ Qc!)) cITT ~ ~ cp1 \Jll ~ i I 
If the insurer feels aggrieved by this Order, an appeal may be preferred to the Securities 
Appellate Tribunal as per the provisions of Section 110 of the Insurance Act, 1938. 

J/ ·«fJ · 4d~12-I ~ 
at~- Qc--llllcf> / B. C. Patnaik 
-Ha~ (uflq--1) / Member (Life) 

~ I Place: ~~xlcill~ / Hyderabad 
~.--ii<t> I Date: 15 ~ 2024 / 15th July, 2024 

~~ 
m;fll" ~ ~/ Rajay Kumar Sinha 

-Hatll {FcRf q f;iij'.~I) / Member (F&I) 

"IRref "C!77R ~ $·f(qN°t1 c/irFfl f&!A2s it lJTlT& ii JifrtT:r ~ 
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